
1  

HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 12, 2019 

7:00 P.M. 
CITY HALL, HEARING ROOM #1 
ONE FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA 

OAKLAND, CA 

AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. CONSENT ITEMS 

a) Review of Board Minutes from November 7, 2019 
Panel Meeting 

b) Approval of Board Minutes from November 14, 2019 
Regular Meeting 

4. OPEN FORUM 

5. APPEALS*
 

a) L18-0161, Jackman v. Tenants  
b) E18-0012 to E18-0017, Homes East Bay 4 LLC v. Tenants  

6. ACTION ITEMS 

a) Formation of additional ad hoc committees, membership and 
review of issues identified in May 9, 2019, Board meeting 
(see attached list on page 3) 

7. INFORMATION AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
a) Rent Adjustment Program Updates (C. Franklin 

Minor) 
b) Legislative Updates (Office of the City Attorney) 

8. COMMITTEE REPORTS AND SCHEDULING 
a) Report from Ad Hoc Committee – Deferred Maintenance v. 

Capital Improvement of Dry Rot 
 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 

* Staff recommendation memos for the appeals will be available at the Rent Program and the Clerk’s office 

at least 72 hours prior to the meeting pursuant to O.M.C. 2.20.080.C and 2.20.090. 

000001



2  

Accessibility. This meeting location is wheelchair accessible. To request 
disability-related accommodations or to request an ASL, Cantonese, Mandarin or 
Spanish interpreter, please email sshannon@oaklandca.gov or call (510) 238- 
3715 or California relay service at 711 at least five working days before the 
meeting. Please refrain from wearing scented products to this meeting as a 
courtesy to attendees with chemical sensitivities. 

 
Esta reunión es accesible para sillas de ruedas. Si desea solicitar adaptaciones 
relacionadas con discapacidades, o para pedir un intérprete de en español, 
Cantones, Mandarín o de lenguaje de señas (ASL) por favor envié un correo 
electrónico a sshannon@oaklandca.gov o llame al (510) 238-3715 o 711 por lo 
menos cinco días hábiles antes de la reunión. Se le pide de favor que no use 
perfumes a esta reunión como cortesía para los que tienen sensibilidad a los 
productos químicos. Gracias. 

 

會場有適合輪椅出入設施。需要殘障輔助設施, 手語, 西班牙語, 

粵語或國語翻譯服務, 請在會議前五個工作天電郵 sshannon@oaklandca.gov 

或致電 (510) 238-3715 或 711 California relay service. 

請避免塗搽香氛產品，參加者可能對化學成分敏感。 

Service Animals/Emotional Support Animals: The City of Oakland Rent 
Adjustment Program is committed to providing full access to qualified persons 
with disabilities who use service animals or emotional support animals. 

 
If your service animal lacks visual evidence that it is a service animal (presence 
of an apparel item, apparatus, etc.), then please be prepared to reasonably 
establish that the animal does, in fact, perform a function or task that you cannot 
otherwise perform. 

 
If you will be accompanied by an emotional support animal, then you must 
provide documentation on letterhead from a licensed mental health professional, 
not more than one year old, stating that you have a mental health-related 
disability, that having the animal accompany you is necessary to your mental 
health or treatment, and that you are under his or her professional care. Service 
animals and emotional support animals must be trained to behave properly in 
public. An animal that behaves in an unreasonably disruptive or aggressive 
manner (barks, growls, bites, jumps, urinates or defecates, etc.) will be removed. 

000002

mailto:sshannon@oaklandca.gov
mailto:sshannon@oaklandca.gov
mailto:sshannon@oaklandca.gov


3  

Formation of additional ad hoc committees, membership and review of issues 
identified in May 9, 2019, Board meeting: 

 

 Information about the Building Code and intersection with the 
Regulations; (e.g. window bars-there is a code that applies to 
this.) 

 Should dry rot be treated differently from other deferred 
maintenance items? 

 Clarification of deferred maintenance v. items that benefit 
tenants? 

 Ambiguous terms in the regulations and in the Ordinance; 

 How is the value of the Decreased Housing Services determined? 

 What constitutes a burden of proof regarding expenses for capital 
improvements? 

 Effects of AB 1482 on Rent Adjustment Program Ordinance 

 Denial of subtenant/roommate constitutes a decreased housing 
service? 

000003



HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD 
PANEL MEETING   

NOVEMBER 7, 2019 
7:00 P.M. 

CITY HALL, HEARING ROOM #1 
ONE FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA 

OAKLAND, CA 

MINUTES 

1. CALL TO ORDER

The HRRRB meeting was called to order at 7:12pm by Chair, E. Lai.

2. ROLL CALL

MEMBER STATUS PRESENT ABSENT EXCUSED 

C. TODD Tenant Alt X 

E. LAI Homeowner Alt. X 

K. SIMS Landlord Alt. X 

Staff Present 
Ubaldo Fernandez Deputy City Attorney, Office of the City Attorney 
Oliver Luby  Deputy City Attorney, Office of the City Attorney 
Keith Mason   Program Analyst II, Rent Adjustment Program 
Kelly Rush Program Analyst I, Rent Adjustment Program  

3. OPEN FORUM

4. APPEALS*

a. T18-0098, Arguete v. Ogbeide

Appearances: Festus Ogbeide Owner Appellant 
Eve Arguete  Tenant Appellee 

The owner appealed the Hearing Decision which granted the tenant a 
decrease in rent from $2,600.00 to $1,800.00 due to tenant’s claims of 
decreased housing services for loss of use of the basement space after the 
owner converted the basement into a second unit.  

The owner appeared and contended that the original rent was $2,600.00. 
The owner stated that the tenant (Eve Arguete) had trouble paying the entire rent 
after her housemate vacated the unit. Due to her hardship, the owner contended 
that he made an oral agreement with the Ms. Arguete (tenant) to decrease her 

000003A



rent to $1,800.00 temporarily so that he could remodel the basement to rent it 
separately. The owner states that within their agreement, the rent would be 
increased to market value once the work was completed. The appellant 
contended that he did not appear at the underlying hearing because he did not 
believe he was subject to the Rent Adjustment Program because it is a single-
family home.  

The tenant appeared and contended that as of November 2017, the unit is 
no longer exempt as a single-family home since he rented the basement unit to 
another tenant. The tenant stated that she has been paying $1,800.00 for two 
years and requests that the Board uphold the Hearing Decision.   

After arguments made by both parties, Board questions to the parties 
and Board discussion, K. Sims moved to remand the Hearing Decision with 
instruction to review the amount of decreased housing services based on the 
square footage of the basement lost by the tenant. There was no second to 
this motion.  

The motion failed. 

C. Todd motioned to uphold the Hearing Decision based on substantial
evidence. E. Lai seconded the motion. 

The Board voted as follows: 

Aye: C. Todd, E. Lai 
Nay: K. Sims 
Abstain: 

The motion passed. 

5. ADJOURNMENT

The HRRRB meeting was adjourned at 8:06pm by Chair, E. Lai. 

000003B

Visay9M
Underline



1  

HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 14, 2019 

7:00 P.M. 
CITY HALL, HEARING ROOM #1 
ONE FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA 

OAKLAND, CA 

MINUTES 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The HRRRB meeting was called to order at 7:07 p.m. by Chair, R. Stone. 

2. ROLL CALL 

 

MEMBER STATUS PRESENT ABSENT EXCUSED 

T. HALL Tenant X   

R. AUGUSTE Tenant X   

H. FLANERY Tenant Alt.   X 

C. TODD Tenant Alt.   X 

     
R. STONE Homeowner X   

J. WARNER Homeowner   X 

A. GRAHAM Homeowner X   

E. LAI Homeowner Alt.   X 

J. MA POWERS Homeowner Alt. X   

     
K. FRIEDMAN Landlord X   

T. WILLIAMS Landlord X   

B. SCOTT Landlord Alt.   X 

K. SIMS Landlord Alt.   X 

 

Staff Present 
Kent Qian   Deputy City Attorney 
Oliver Luby   Deputy City Attorney 
Chaneé Franklin Minor Program Manager, Rent Adjustment Program 
Kelly Rush   Program Analyst I, Rent Adjustment Program 

 

3. CONSENT ITEMS 

a) Review of Board Minutes from October 17, 2019 
Panel Meeting 

b) Approval of Board Minutes from October 24, 2019 
Regular Meeting 

000004



2  

One correction provided for bate stamp page 12, second motion 
should read “T. Williams seconded” instead of “R. Stone seconded.”  

    
A. Graham motions to approve Board minutes from October 24th, 2019 

with the one correction above. T. Hall seconded motion.  

 
The Board voted as follows: 

   
Aye: R. Auguste, T. Hall, J. Powers, A. Graham, R. Stone, T. Williams 
Nay: 
Abstain: K. Friedman 

    
The motion passed.  
 

4. OPEN FORUM 

 Speaker: Edward Lai 

 Requests that appeal recommendations should be 
written by City Attorney’s Office 

 States that the Rent Board needs to be independent 
and answers to City Council 

 Speaker: James Vann  

 Comments and review should be directed only at items 
that are on appeal 

 Rent Board can decide to hold an evidentiary hearing if 
needed 

5. APPEALS 
a) T19-0011, Aguirre v. Diamond Properties 

 
 Appearances: Luis Aguirre   Tenant Appellant    
    Jennifer Maniar  Owner Appellee Representative  
  

 The tenant appealed the Hearing Decision that denied the 
tenant decreased housing services for loss of the patio space and 
allowed the owner response to be considered even though it was 
submitted after the deadline. The tenant appellant appeared and 
contended that the repairs were supposed to be completed in a few 
months. The tenant states that he used the patio on a daily basis with 
his children and that loss of service required him to take his children 
elsewhere to play outside. The appellant also reiterates that the 
owner response was not made timely and that there was no good 
cause for the late submission. The tenant appellant does 
acknowledge that the work is nice but that does not change the loss 
that was experienced during this time.  

 
The owner representative appeared and contended that the work 

000005



3  

was more extensive than originally planned due to required work on 
the roof membrane. The representative indicated that the work was 
completed in approximately 10 months and the work would benefit 
the current and future tenants in the building. She states that there 
was no capital improvement passthrough to tenants for this work. As 
for the late filing, the owner representative contends that she was 
relatively new to the real estate field at the time of filing and thought 
that the response was due in 35 business days rather than calendar 
days.    

 

After arguments made by both parties, Board questions to the 
parties and Board discussion, T. Hall motions to remand to the 
Hearing Officer to discount the late document and not consider 
the owner’s untimely response. R. Auguste seconds the motion.  
 

The Board voted as follows: 
 

Aye: R. Auguste, T. Hall, J. Powers, A. Graham  
Nay: R. Stone, T. Williams, K. Friedman  
Abstain: 
 
The motion carried.  
 
A. Graham motions to set aside the prior vote. T. Williams seconded 
the motion.  

 
The Board voted as follows: 

 
Aye: R. Auguste, T. Hall, J. Powers, A. Graham, R. Stone, T. 
Williams, K. Friedman 
Nay:  
Abstain: 
 
The motion passed by consensus.  
 
T. Hall motions to remand to the Hearing Officer to re-determine the 
Hearing Decision without using untimely response and use discretion 
if new hearing is needed. J. Powers seconded the motion.  

 
The Board voted as follows: 

 
Aye: R. Auguste, T. Hall, J. Powers, A. Graham, R. Stone 
Nay: T. Williams, K. Friedman 
Abstain: 
 
The motion carried. 

000006



4  

  
A. Graham motioned to uphold the Hearing Officer’s Decision that 
there were no decreased housing services awarded during the repair 
of the deck. K. Friedman provided a friendly amendment that the loss 
in service was only temporary is not an unreasonable delay. A. 
Graham accepts friendly amended. K. Friedman seconded the 
motion.  
 
The Board voted as follows: 

 
Aye: T. Hall, J. Powers, A. Graham, R. Stone, T. Williams, K. 
Friedman 
Nay: R. Auguste 
Abstain: 
 
The motion carried. 

 
b) T19-0097, Torres de Janon v. Melter 

 
This case was dismissed by appealing party prior to Rent Board 
meeting.  

6. ACTION ITEMS 

a) Formation of additional ad hoc committees, membership and 
review of issues identified in May 9, 2019, Board meeting 
(see attached list on page 3) 

 
Speaker: James Vann 

 Request item of seniors on fixed incomes be added to the 
list 

 
No interest in creation of further committees currently. Board Chair 
requests that this item continue to remain on the agenda for future 
meetings.  

 

7. INFORMATION AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
a) Rent Adjustment Program Updates (C. Franklin 

Minor) 
 

C. Franklin Minor provided that 7a and 7b will be added to the 
agenda for the first meeting of each month which she will attend.  

 
C. Franklin Minor also discussed  

 outreach by the Rent Adjustment Program has continued  
o EBRHA expo – presentation to about 50 

000007



5  

people about overview and shifts in the 
program 

o Outreach to tenants in the Fruitvale through 
partnership with ACEE  

 Backlog of petitions to enter is now gone. Petitions will now 
be entered as they come in. She would like to thank staff 
for their hard work to get the backlog complete. 

 Close to being caught up with appeal cases. Backlog of 
appeal cases should be done in January.  

 Efficiency Ordinance will be presented to Council in 
January.  

 Info sheet on AB1482 is being made for the Rent 
Adjustment Program 

 Rent Adjustment Program will create a postcard mailer that 
will include Oakland law and State law information.   

 
K. Friedman suggested that it is also important to try and do 
some outreach to Spanish speaking owners as well.  
 

b) Legislative Updates (Office of the City Attorney) 
 

K. Qian provided that the Efficiency Ordinance should be presented 
to City Council in January. More updates to come.  

8. COMMITTEE REPORTS AND SCHEDULING 
a) Report from Ad Hoc Committee – Deferred Maintenance v. 

Capital Improvement of Dry Rot 
 

T. Williams stated that the Committee still has not met yet and there 
is nothing to report. The members will attempt to meet this week in 
person or by Skype.  

 
b) Appeal Recommendation Discussion (C. Franklin Minor) 
 

C. Franklin Minor stated that there were three options included in the 
packet for Board members to review and decide which format would 
be best. (Bate stamps #4 through #6) She also provides that the 
Board has complete power to ignore, accept parts or accept 
altogether. The recommendation is simply a tool to assist with the 
analysis of the cases. Mrs. Minor compares the recommendations to 
other jurisdictions such as Santa Monica, Berkeley, and San 
Francisco that were used to determine which is best.  

 SF - Administrative Law Judge who wrote initial Hearing 
Decision provides the recommendation 

 Berkeley and Santa Monica – a staff attorney write the 
recommendation 

000008



6  

 
General consensus of Board members favored option #3 (on Bate 
Stamp #6).  

 K. Friedman expressed appreciation for applicable law and 
past Rent Board decisions that are included in option #3.  

 R. Stone agreed with K. Friedman, however, he has two 
concerns 

o Scope of memo sometimes goes beyond the 
Hearing Decisions 

o Due process concerns since the memo is only 
available 3 days prior to the hearing. This may not 
provide adequate time for a party to prep for a 
response to the memorandum.  

 A. Graham expressed favor for option #3. 

 J. Powers also expressed favor for option #3 and states 
that issue identification is most useful to her but would like 
to remember that the Board is not bound by past decisions. 
(K. Friedman provided that some are precedential cases) 

 
K. Friedman suggests that if needed, appeal scheduling should show 
down to allow for staff to write appeal recommendations.  
 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
 

The HRRRB meeting was adjourned at 9:57pm by Board Chair, R. Stone.  

 

000009



000010



000011



000012



000013



000014



000015



000016



000017



000018



000019



000020



000021



000022



000023



000024



000025



000026



000027



000028



000029



000030



000031



000032



000033



000034



000035



000036



000037



000038



000039



000040



000041



000042



000043



000044



000045



000046



000047



000048



000049



000050



000051



000052



000053



000054



000055



000056



000057



000058



000059



000060



000061



000062



000063



000064



000065



000066



000067



000068



000069



000070



000071



000072



000073



000074


	HRRRB 12.12.2019 BOARD AGENDA Regular Meeting 12-12-2019.pdf
	HRRRB 12.12.2019 BOARD Regular Meeting Minutes 11-14-2019.pdf
	HRRRB 12.12.19.pdf



